
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda 

Economy and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Monday, 10 October 2016, 10.00 am 
County Hall, Worcester 
 
All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

 

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 728713 or by emailing 

democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

 



 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  

 Sponsorship by a 3
rd

 party of your member or election expenses 

 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 

 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 

 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 

 
      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

 Register it within 28 days and  

 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  
- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 

      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 

 No need to register them but 

 You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 
  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  

a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 
 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 

 affects your pecuniary interests OR  
relates to a planning or regulatory matter 

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
DON'T FORGET 

 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. For general enquiries: 01905 763763 Worcestershire Hub (01905) 765765  
Email: worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact Emma James/Jo Weston 
telephone:Worcester(01905) 844964,email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website at 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees 
 
 
Date of Issue: Thursday, 29 September 2016 

 
 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Monday, 10 October 2016, 10.00 am,  
 
Membership 
Councillors:  
Mr P A Tuthill (Chairman), Mr G J  Vickery (Vice Chairman), Mr A T  Amos, Mr A A J Adams, 
Ms P Agar, Mr W P Gretton, Mr M E Jenkins, Mr T A Muir and Mr J W R Thomas 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Item No Subject Page No 

 

1  Apologies and Welcome 
 

 

2  Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip 
 

 

3  Public Participation 
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services in writing or by email indicating the 
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am 
on the working day before the meeting (in this case 7 October 2016).  
Enquiries can be made through the telephone number/email address 
below. 
 

 

4  Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous meeting 
Previously circulated. 
 

 

5  Superfast Broadband Update 
 

1 - 6 

 

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 5  
  

 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 10 October 2016 

 

 

ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
PANEL 
10 OCTOBER 2016 
 

SUPERFAST BROADBAND - UPDATE 

 
Summary 
 

1. The Panel is to be updated on delivery of superfast broadband across 
Worcestershire.  
 
2. Representatives from the Council's Superfast Worcestershire Programme and from 
BT have been invited to the meeting. 

 
 

Background 
 

3. The Council's contract with BT as broadband infrastructure supplier (set up in 
August 2013), asks for an annual report to be submitted to scrutiny, summarising 
programme activity, achievements against milestones and how public concerns and 
demand have been managed. An update is attached at appendix 1. 

 
4. The Panel will be aware that the County Council and BT formed a partnership known 
as Superfast Worcestershire, which aimed to deliver high speed broadband to 90% of 
Worcestershire homes and businesses (including 55,000 in rural locations) by 2016. 

 
5. The plan for delivery and roll out was discussed with the then Economy, 
Environment and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 17 September 2014 
and an update was provided on 20 May 2015.  This Panel received its last update on 30 
September 2015.  

 

Purpose of the meeting 
 

6. The Panel is asked to consider the latest information provided on superfast 
broadband in Worcestershire, and: 

 consider whether any further information or scrutiny is required at this time 

 determine any comments or recommendations to Cabinet 
 

7. In doing so, the Panel may wish to consider 

 How value for money is being ensured 

 How customers are being engaged 

 Future plans 
 

Supporting Information 
 

Appendix 1 – Update on Superfast Broadband 
 

Contact Points 
 

Page 1



 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 10 October 2016  

 

County Council Contact Points 
County Council: 01905 763763 
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765 
Email: worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report: 
 

 Agenda and Minutes of: 
o Agenda and Minutes of Economy, Environment and Communities Overview 

and Scrutiny Panel  on 17 September 2014 and 20 May 2015 
o Agenda and Minutes of the Economy and Environment Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel on 30 September 2015 
o Agenda and Minutes of Cabinet on 5 February 2015 

 
Minutes and Agendas are available on the Council's website at 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx 

Page 2

mailto:worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx


 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 10 October 2016 

  
 
SUPERFAST BROADBAND ANNUAL UPDATE September 2015 - September 2016 
 
Introduction 
 

1. Worcestershire County Council signed a c.£20 million contract with BT in August 2013 
(contract 1) to ensure faster fibre broadband was available to over 90% of the County's 
residential and 90% of business premises by June 2016; in addition a commitment was 
made that 100% of premises would have access to the universal basic service 
commitment for a minimum speed of 2 megabits per second (Mbps).  
 

2. A second contract (contract 2) was signed in spring 2014, again with BT, for c.£6m to 
increase fibre coverage in the county; specifically to increase the number of premises 
with access to superfast speeds, defined as 24Mbps and above. At the end of 
September 2017 superfast speeds are expected to be available to 94% of 
Worcestershire premises, with over 95% able to access fibre based broadband. 

 
Update on Contract 1 performance 
 

3. There have been eight deployment phases to contract 1, the first premises were 
connected, ahead of schedule in May 2014 and deployment was officially completed at 
the end of July 2016, the programme office are currently undertaking the necessary 
paperwork and processing the final claims to close down the 'deployment' of contract 1 
and move into 'contract monitoring'. Whilst the final claims remain outstanding, we 
expect that the first contract will come in within budget. 

 
4. As was reported in last year's annual report to scrutiny, at 30 September 2015, more 

than 41,820 premises, served from 255 cabinets were then able to connect to fibre 
broadband as a result of the programme. Since that date, by the close of contract 1, a 
further 99 cabinets or 'fibre to the premises' structures have been completed (totalling 
354 cabinets/structures) and enabling access at a total of 59,751 premises. The majority 
of deployment within contract 1 has been 'fibre to the cabinet', however a number of 
structures have been deployed as 'fibre to the premises'. 

 
5. At the close of deployment a number of structures remained 'in progress', all of these 

remaining structures have been surveyed or are in the progress of being built; these are 
moving into contract 2, to be deployed at the front end of the programme. Only one 
planned structure has had to be dropped from the deployment plan, this was due to 
'siting issues' and an ongoing issue with existing infrastructure in Worcester city centre. 

 
6. The original Worcestershire Local Broadband Plan set out three high level priorities.  

 

 To ensure fibre broadband was available at 90% of Worcestershire premises; 

 Uniquely amongst other similar contracts across the UK, Worcestershire also set a 
90% business premises target; 

 To ensure that all premises had access to a minimum speed of 2Mbps by 2016.  
 

7. At the end of contract 1 all of these targets had been achieved; fibre coverage has 
reached c.96% of the county, up from 73% when the programme commenced; business 
coverage is now at 90%, up from 44%. The third, 2Mbps minimum service commitment, 
has been enabled through the availability of the 'Better Broadband Scheme'; the scheme 
enables individuals to secure a connection through a registered supplier of other 
services e.g. satellite. 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 3



 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 10 October 2016 

8. Below the top level targets, there are two contractual targets. These were for 54,433 
premises, within Worcestershire's intervention area, to have access to fibre broadband 
and for 47,947 of these premises to have access to superfast speeds. The 'fibre' target 
was achieved ahead of schedule; when the remaining cabinets that are moving into 
contract 2 are delivered, the 'superfast' target is expected to be overachieved by around 
600 premises. 

 
9. Of the 29 structures moving from contract 1 into contract 2, 8 have already been made 

live, 5 are in commissioning (the final stage before being made live); the remainder are 
in various stages of the 'build' process, currently all of these cabinets except two are 
expected to be live by the end of October 2016. The remaining two structures are 
delayed beyond October due to required road closures and hitting an excessive amount 
of granite in one of the structures. Whilst these are now anticipated by the end of the 
calendar year, as with all structures, any issue in the remaining deployment can lead to 
further delays. All updates on cabinets are available on the programme's website. 

 
Transition into Contract 2 
 

10. County Council and BT have worked together to jointly plan and ensure effective 
deployment of the infrastructure across Worcestershire – this partnership approach, 
supported by BDUK, has ensured swift issue resolution, coordinated customer 
engagement and a team approach to highways and planning requirements. These 
working arrangements have continued through the transition in to contract 2. 

 
11. Planning for structures in contract 2 is ahead of schedule; over 90 cabinets have been 

surveyed and are in the process of being built. The first 9 cabinets in contract 2 are 
already live with 4 further cabinets in 'commissioning' and expected live imminently.    
 

BDUK+ Communities Update (formerly referred to as DERA or Rural Community Broadband) 
 

12. The extra premises enabled by the additional BDUK+ funding were incorporated into the 
original programme deployment timescales for contract 1, as at the time the programme 
was ahead of schedule. 
 

13. It was reported at the last scrutiny meeting that we expected to have deployed the 
majority of the 16 BDUK+ structures by the end of March 2016, with a small number 
expected to be delivered by June 2016. As at September 2016, 7 structures have been 
made live and 1 cabinet is in commissioning. The outstanding structures form part of the 
29 structures, referenced above, that are moving back into the early part of contract 2 

 
Lessons Learnt from issues in delivery 
 

14. During the deployment of contract 1, one of the key sub-contractors went into 
administration; this caused a significant delay in deployment during quarter 3 and quarter 
4 of 2015/2016, as they effectively were the only supplier working to physically build the 
cabinets. Whilst the management of sub-contractors is the responsibility of Openreach 
the programme team have requested that wherever possible resilience is planned in 
future. 

  
15. As the programme has progressed into increasingly rural areas there has been an 

increase in the number of wayleaves required for both standing cabinets and building 
power and fibre ducts or poles. To mitigate against these risks the programme office are 
working to escalate wayleave issues as quickly as possible to local contacts and look for 
support from within communities when appropriate.  

 
16. Early in the programme the decision was made to be transparent around the planning 

and timelines for the build of the cabinets; whilst recognising that all plans are subject to 
change. Whilst this has been a successful strategy it has led to many communities 

Page 4



 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 10 October 2016 

assuming that an initial indicative timeline was a target for delivery and in many cases 
these dates do slip. As the programme continues it will continue to be a challenge 
balancing transparency with local expectations. 

 
Current and Future Opportunities  

 

17. In addition to measuring the coverage of the deployment another key indicator of the 
success of the programme can also be measured by Take-Up; where a higher than 
predicted take-up will drive further benefits to the programme, Worcestershire County 
Council and the residents/businesses of Worcestershire. The original financial model 
suggested that take-up of 20% would only be reached post deployment; currently the 
programme is significantly ahead of plan, c.30% of premises that are able to connect to 
fibre broadband, as a result of the programme have 'signed up' for the faster service. 
 

18. As was reported at the last annual report to scrutiny the programme has made a 
commitment to improving take-up through a coordinated approach to Demand 
Stimulation. This has included the 'wrapping' and stickering cabinets when they go live, 
this has also been followed up by local advertising, radio and bus advertising and 
postcards being delivered to addresses connected to the live cabinets. There has also 
been a further radio campaign, advertising at key sites such as Worcester Racecourse 
and Worcestershire County Cricket Club. One of the most successful activities has been 
the extension of the Social Media trial; engagement through Facebook and Twitter has 
allowed the programme to answer questions of customers and keep individuals informed 
of cabinets going live in their area. 
  

19. As a result of positive take-up on the programme, BT offered WCC the opportunity to re-
invest up to £3.25m into the programme, earlier than anticipated. In November 2015 
Worcestershire County Council approved for the re-investment to be explored. In 
September 2016 BT returned the initial modelling solution that is currently being worked 
through and discussed. It is anticipated that if the modelling is accepted then the 
Partnership will be in a position to announce the additional areas to benefit by the end of 
the calendar year. Further re-investment opportunities may be presented as a result of 
any underspend or if take-up increases beyond current forecasted levels. 

 
20. During 2016, two commercial suppliers have announced their intention to extend their 

own networks further in Worcestershire. Virgin Media announced they would be 
extending commercial coverage in Lickey, Catshill and Upper & Lower Marlbook as part 
of the areas they have ‘handpicked to supercharge over the next 2 years'. In addition, 
Gigaclear has announced significant commercial deployment in three distinct areas of 
the county: ‘Rowney Green’, ‘Dodford’ and ‘Hanley Castle’ during 2016 and 2017. 
However, it should be noted that their deployment stretches beyond the boundaries of 
these parishes. Again, Worcestershire Count Council welcomes the additional 
deployment from commercial suppliers; all of Gigaclear's deployment is fibre to the 
premises. Gigaclear's deployment model is demand led, meaning they first undertake 
marketing and promotion; should they generate interest equating to 30-35% of their 
target area, they will begin deployment. 

 
21. BT, Gigaclear and Virgin are also looking for individuals and communities to register 

their interest in bringing faster broadband to their areas. BT's Community Fibre 
Partnerships scheme looks for communities to make a financial contribution to the build 
and they will work with the community to model a solution. Virgin's Project Lightning and 
Cable My Street, looks for individuals to register on their website, areas with high 
demand will then be taken into consideration. Gigaclear, request that individuals register 
demand at their website, again when an area demonstrates a high demand they will look 
to engage with that community.  

 

Page 5



 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 10 October 2016 

22. In May 2016 WCC submitted an outline application to the European Structural and 
Investment Fund, part of the European Regional Development Fund for c.£1.1m. Having 
already conditionally secured match funding of £1m from BDUK, the application was 
approved in August 2016; WCC were asked to submit a full application, this application 
was submitted on 23 September 2016, with decisions expected during November. The 
focus for this bid is to further extend broadband coverage across the county with a 
particular focus on business coverage. In an attempt to bring pace to any further action 
the programme office have already commenced an Open Market Review, so that if the 
bid is successful we will be in a position to move swiftly. 

 
 
REPORT ENDS 
 
Prepared by Ste Ashton (WCC Senior Project Manager) September 2016 

Page 6


	Agenda
	5 Superfast Broadband Update
	Item 5 Broadband App1


